

1 AN ACT relating to reorganization.

2 ***Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky:***

3 ➔Section 1. KRS 12.020 is amended to read as follows:

4 Departments, program cabinets and their departments, and the respective major
5 administrative bodies that they include are enumerated in this section. It is not intended
6 that this enumeration of administrative bodies be all-inclusive. Every authority, board,
7 bureau, interstate compact, commission, committee, conference, council, office, or any
8 other form of organization shall be included in or attached to the department or program
9 cabinet in which they are included or to which they are attached by statute or statutorily
10 authorized executive order; except in the case of the Personnel Board and where the
11 attached department or administrative body is headed by a constitutionally elected officer,
12 the attachment shall be solely for the purpose of dissemination of information and
13 coordination of activities and shall not include any authority over the functions,
14 personnel, funds, equipment, facilities, or records of the department or administrative
15 body.

16 I. Cabinet for General Government - Departments headed by elected officers:

- 17 (1) The Governor.
- 18 (2) Lieutenant Governor.
- 19 (3) Department of State.
- 20 (a) Secretary of State.
- 21 (b) Board of Elections.
- 22 (c) Registry of Election Finance.
- 23 (4) Department of Law.
- 24 (a) Attorney General.
- 25 (5) Department of the Treasury.
- 26 (a) Treasurer.
- 27 (6) Department of Agriculture.

- 1 (a) Commissioner of Agriculture.
- 2 (b) Kentucky Council on Agriculture.
- 3 (7) Auditor of Public Accounts.
- 4 II. Program cabinets headed by appointed officers:
- 5 (1) Justice and Public Safety Cabinet:
- 6 (a) Department of Kentucky State Police.
- 7 (b) Department of Criminal Justice Training.
- 8 (c) Department of Corrections.
- 9 (d) Department of Juvenile Justice.
- 10 (e) Office of the Secretary.
- 11 (f) Office of Drug Control Policy.
- 12 (g) Office of Legal Services.
- 13 (h) Office of the Kentucky State Medical Examiner.
- 14 (i) Parole Board.
- 15 (j) Kentucky State Corrections Commission.
- 16 (k) Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Services.
- 17 (l) Office of Management and Administrative Services.
- 18 (m) Department of Public Advocacy.
- 19 (2) Education and Workforce Development Cabinet:
- 20 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 21 1. Governor's Scholars Program.
- 22 2. Governor's School for Entrepreneurs Program.
- 23 (b) Office of Legal and Legislative Services.
- 24 1. Client Assistance Program.
- 25 (c) Office of Communication.
- 26 (d) Office of Budget and Administration.
- 27 1. Division of Human Resources.

- 1 2. Division of Administrative Services.
- 2 (e) Office of Technology Services.
- 3 (f) Office of Educational Programs.
- 4 (g) Office for Education and Workforce Statistics.
- 5 (h) Board of the Kentucky Center for Education and Workforce Statistics.
- 6 (i) Board of Directors for the Center for School Safety.
- 7 (j) Department of Education.
 - 8 1. Kentucky Board of Education.
 - 9 2. Kentucky Technical Education Personnel Board.
- 10 (k) Department for Libraries and Archives.
- 11 (l) Department of Workforce Investment.
 - 12 1. Office for the Blind.
 - 13 2. Office of Vocational Rehabilitation.
 - 14 3. Office of Employment and Training.
 - 15 a. Division of Grant Management and Support.
 - 16 b. Division of Workforce and Employment Services.
 - 17 c. Division of Unemployment Insurance.
- 18 (m) Foundation for Workforce Development.
- 19 (n) Kentucky Office for the Blind State Rehabilitation Council.
- 20 (o) Kentucky Workforce Investment Board.
- 21 (p) Statewide Council for Vocational Rehabilitation.
- 22 (q) Unemployment Insurance Commission.
- 23 (r) Education Professional Standards Board.
 - 24 1. Division of Educator Preparation.
 - 25 2. Division of Certification.
 - 26 3. Division of Professional Learning and Assessment.
 - 27 4. Division of Legal Services.

- 1 (s) Kentucky Commission on the Deaf and Hard of Hearing.
- 2 (t) Kentucky Educational Television.
- 3 (u) Kentucky Environmental Education Council.
- 4 (3) Energy and Environment Cabinet:
- 5 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 6 1. Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs.
- 7 2. Office of General Counsel.
- 8 3. Office of Administrative Hearings.
- 9 4. Mine Safety Review Commission.
- 10 5. Kentucky State Nature Preserves Commission.
- 11 6. Kentucky Public Service Commission.
- 12 (b) Department for Environmental Protection.
- 13 1. Office of the Commissioner.
- 14 2. Division for Air Quality.
- 15 3. Division of Water.
- 16 4. Division of Environmental Program Support.
- 17 5. Division of Waste Management.
- 18 6. Division of Enforcement.
- 19 7. Division of Compliance Assistance.
- 20 (c) Department for Natural Resources.
- 21 1. Office of the Commissioner.
- 22 2. Division of Technical and Administrative Support.
- 23 3. Division of Mine Permits.
- 24 4. Division of Mine Reclamation and Enforcement.
- 25 5. Division of Abandoned Mine Lands.
- 26 6. Division of Oil and Gas.
- 27 7. Division of Mine Safety.

- 1 8. Division of Forestry.
- 2 9. Division of Conservation.
- 3 10. Office of the Reclamation Guaranty Fund.
- 4 (d) Department for Energy Development and Independence.
- 5 1. Division of Efficiency and Conservation.
- 6 2. Division of Renewable Energy.
- 7 3. Division of Biofuels.
- 8 4. Division of Energy Generation Transmission and Distribution.
- 9 5. Division of Carbon Management.
- 10 6. Division of Fossil Energy Development.
- 11 (4) Public Protection Cabinet.
- 12 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 13 1. Office of Communications and Public Outreach.
- 14 2. Office of Legal Services.
- 15 a. Insurance Legal Division.
- 16 b. Charitable Gaming Legal Division.
- 17 c. Alcoholic Beverage Control Legal Division.
- 18 d. Housing, Buildings and Construction Legal Division.
- 19 e. Financial Institutions Legal Division.
- 20 (b) Kentucky Claims Commission.
- 21 (c) Kentucky Boxing and Wrestling Commission.
- 22 (d) Kentucky Horse Racing Commission.
- 23 1. Office of Executive Director.
- 24 a. Division of Pari-mutuel Wagering and Compliance.
- 25 b. Division of Stewards.
- 26 c. Division of Licensing.
- 27 d. Division of Enforcement.

- 1 e. Division of Incentives and Development.
- 2 f. Division of Veterinary Services.
- 3 (e) Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.
 - 4 1. Division of Distilled Spirits.
 - 5 2. Division of Malt Beverages.
 - 6 3. Division of Enforcement.
- 7 (f) Department of Charitable Gaming.
 - 8 1. Division of Licensing and Compliance.
 - 9 2. Division of Enforcement.
- 10 (g) Department of Financial Institutions.
 - 11 1. Division of Depository Institutions.
 - 12 2. Division of Non-Depository Institutions.
 - 13 3. Division of Securities.
- 14 (h) Department of Housing, Buildings and Construction.
 - 15 1. Division of Fire Prevention.
 - 16 2. Division of Plumbing.
 - 17 3. Division of Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning.
 - 18 4. Division of Building Code Enforcement.
- 19 (i) Department of Insurance.
 - 20 1. Division of Insurance Product Regulation.
 - 21 2. Division of Administrative Services.
 - 22 3. Division of Financial Standards and Examination.
 - 23 4. Division of Agent Licensing.
 - 24 5. Division of Insurance Fraud Investigation.
 - 25 6. Division of Consumer Protection.
 - 26 7. Division of Kentucky Access.
- 27 (j) Department of Professional Licensing.

- 1 1. Real Estate Authority.
- 2 (5) Labor Cabinet.
- 3 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 4 1. Division of Management Services.
- 5 2. Office of General Counsel.
- 6 a. Workplace Standards Legal Division.
- 7 b. Workers' Claims Legal Division.
- 8 (b) Office of General Administration and Program Support for Shared
- 9 Services.
- 10 1. Division of Human Resource Management.
- 11 2. Division of Fiscal Management.
- 12 3. Division of Budgets.
- 13 4. Division of Information Services.
- 14 (c) Office of Inspector General for Shared Services.
- 15 (d) Department of Workplace Standards.
- 16 1. Division of Apprenticeship.
- 17 2. Division of Occupational Safety and Health Compliance.
- 18 3. Division of Occupational Safety and Health Education and
- 19 Training.
- 20 4. Division of Wages and Hours.
- 21 (e) Department of Workers' Claims.
- 22 1. Division of Workers' Compensation Funds.
- 23 2. Office of Administrative Law Judges.
- 24 3. Division of Claims Processing.
- 25 4. Division of Security and Compliance.
- 26 5. Division of Information Services.
- 27 6. Division of Ombudsman and Workers' Compensation Specialist

- 1 Services.
- 2 7. Workers' Compensation Board.
- 3 (f) Workers' Compensation Funding Commission.
- 4 (g) Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board.
- 5 (h) Apprenticeship and Training Council.
- 6 (i) State Labor Relations Board.
- 7 (j) Employers' Mutual Insurance Authority.
- 8 (k) Kentucky Occupational Safety and Health Review Commission.
- 9 (l) Workers' Compensation Nominating Committee.
- 10 (6) Transportation Cabinet:
- 11 (a) Department of Highways.
- 12 1. Office of Project Development.
- 13 2. Office of Project Delivery and Preservation.
- 14 3. Office of Highway Safety.
- 15 4. Highway District Offices One through Twelve.
- 16 (b) Department of Vehicle Regulation.
- 17 (c) Department of Aviation.
- 18 (d) Department of Rural and Municipal Aid.
- 19 1. Office of Local Programs.
- 20 2. Office of Rural and Secondary Roads.
- 21 (e) Office of the Secretary.
- 22 1. Office of Public Affairs.
- 23 2. Office for Civil Rights and Small Business Development.
- 24 3. Office of Budget and Fiscal Management.
- 25 4. Office of Inspector General.
- 26 (f) Office of Support Services.
- 27 (g) Office of Transportation Delivery.

- 1 (h) Office of Audits.
- 2 (i) Office of Human Resource Management.
- 3 (j) Office of Information Technology.
- 4 (k) Office of Legal Services.
- 5 (7) Cabinet for Economic Development:
- 6 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 7 1. Office of Legal Services.
- 8 2. Department for Business Development.
- 9 a. Office of Entrepreneurship.
- 10 i. Commission on Small Business Advocacy.
- 11 b. Office of Research and Public Affairs.
- 12 c. Bluegrass State Skills Corporation.
- 13 3. Office of Financial Services.
- 14 a. Kentucky Economic Development Finance Authority.
- 15 b. Division of Finance and Personnel.
- 16 c. Division of Network Administration.
- 17 d. Compliance Division.
- 18 e. Incentive Assistance Division.
- 19 (8) Cabinet for Health and Family Services:
- 20 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 21 (b) Office of Health Policy.
- 22 (c) Office of Legal Services.
- 23 (d) Office of Inspector General.
- 24 (e) Office of Communications and Administrative Review.
- 25 (f) Office of the Ombudsman.
- 26 (g) Office of Finance and Budget.
- 27 (h) Office of Human Resource Management.

- 1 (i) Office of Administrative and Technology Services.
- 2 (j) Department for Public Health.
- 3 (k) Department for Medicaid Services.
- 4 (l) Department for Behavioral Health, Developmental and Intellectual
- 5 Disabilities.
- 6 (m) Department for Aging and Independent Living.
- 7 (n) Department for Community Based Services.
- 8 (o) Department for Income Support.
- 9 (p) Department for Family Resource Centers and Volunteer Services.
- 10 (q) Office~~[Kentucky Commission on Community Volunteerism and~~
- 11 ~~Service.~~
- 12 ~~(r) [Kentucky Commission]~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs.
- 13 (r)~~[(s)]~~ Governor's Office of Electronic Health Information.
- 14 (s)~~[(t)]~~ Office of Legislative and Regulatory Affairs.
- 15 (9) Finance and Administration Cabinet:
- 16 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 17 (b) Office of the Inspector General.
- 18 (c) Office of Legislative and Intergovernmental Affairs.
- 19 (d) Office of General Counsel.
- 20 (e) Office of the Controller.
- 21 (f) Office of Administrative Services.
- 22 (g) Office of Policy and Audit.
- 23 (h) Department for Facilities and Support Services.
- 24 (i) Department of Revenue.
- 25 (j) Commonwealth Office of Technology.
- 26 (k) State Property and Buildings Commission.
- 27 (l) Office of Equal Employment Opportunity and Contract Compliance.

- 1 (m) Kentucky Employees Retirement Systems.
- 2 (n) Commonwealth Credit Union.
- 3 (o) State Investment Commission.
- 4 (p) Kentucky Housing Corporation.
- 5 (q) Kentucky Local Correctional Facilities Construction Authority.
- 6 (r) Kentucky Turnpike Authority.
- 7 (s) Historic Properties Advisory Commission.
- 8 (t) Kentucky Tobacco Settlement Trust Corporation.
- 9 (u) Kentucky Higher Education Assistance Authority.
- 10 (v) Kentucky River Authority.
- 11 (w) Kentucky Teachers' Retirement System Board of Trustees.
- 12 (x) Executive Branch Ethics Commission.
- 13 (10) Tourism, Arts and Heritage Cabinet:
- 14 (a) Kentucky Department of Tourism.
- 15 1. Division of Tourism Services.
- 16 2. Division of Marketing and Administration.
- 17 3. Division of Communications and Promotions.
- 18 (b) Kentucky Department of Parks.
- 19 1. Division of Information Technology.
- 20 2. Division of Human Resources.
- 21 3. Division of Financial Operations.
- 22 4. Division of Facilities Management.
- 23 5. Division of Facilities Maintenance.
- 24 6. Division of Customer Services.
- 25 7. Division of Recreation.
- 26 8. Division of Golf Courses.
- 27 9. Division of Food Services.

- 1 10. Division of Rangers.
- 2 11. Division of Resort Parks.
- 3 12. Division of Recreational Parks and Historic Sites.
- 4 (c) Department of Fish and Wildlife Resources.
- 5 1. Division of Law Enforcement.
- 6 2. Division of Administrative Services.
- 7 3. Division of Engineering, Infrastructure, and Technology.
- 8 4. Division of Fisheries.
- 9 5. Division of Information and Education.
- 10 6. Division of Wildlife.
- 11 7. Division of Marketing.
- 12 (d) Kentucky Horse Park.
- 13 1. Division of Support Services.
- 14 2. Division of Buildings and Grounds.
- 15 3. Division of Operational Services.
- 16 (e) Kentucky State Fair Board.
- 17 1. Office of Administrative and Information Technology Services.
- 18 2. Office of Human Resources and Access Control.
- 19 3. Division of Expositions.
- 20 4. Division of Kentucky Exposition Center Operations.
- 21 5. Division of Kentucky International Convention Center.
- 22 6. Division of Public Relations and Media.
- 23 7. Division of Venue Services.
- 24 8. Division of Personnel Management and Staff Development.
- 25 9. Division of Sales.
- 26 10. Division of Security and Traffic Control.
- 27 11. Division of Information Technology.

- 1 12. Division of the Louisville Arena.
- 2 13. Division of Fiscal and Contract Management.
- 3 14. Division of Access Control.
- 4 (f) Office of the Secretary.
 - 5 1. Office of Finance.
 - 6 2. Office of Government Relations and Administration.
 - 7 3. Office of Film and Tourism Development.
 - 8 4. Kentucky Sports Authority.
- 9 (g) Office of Legal Affairs.
- 10 (h) Office of Human Resources.
- 11 (i) Office of Public Affairs and Constituent Services.
- 12 (j) Office of Creative Services.
- 13 (k) Office of Capital Plaza Operations.
- 14 (l) Office of Arts and Cultural Heritage.
- 15 (m) Kentucky African-American Heritage Commission.
- 16 (n) Kentucky Foundation for the Arts.
- 17 (o) Kentucky Humanities Council.
- 18 (p) Kentucky Heritage Council.
- 19 (q) Kentucky Arts Council.
- 20 (r) Kentucky Historical Society.
 - 21 1. Division of Museums.
 - 22 2. Division of Oral History and Educational Outreach.
 - 23 3. Division of Research and Publications.
 - 24 4. Division of Administration.
- 25 (s) Kentucky Center for the Arts.
 - 26 1. Division of Governor's School for the Arts.
- 27 (t) Kentucky Artisans Center at Berea.

- 1 (u) Northern Kentucky Convention Center.
- 2 (v) Eastern Kentucky Exposition Center.
- 3 (11) Personnel Cabinet:
- 4 (a) Office of the Secretary.
- 5 (b) Department of Human Resources Administration.
- 6 (c) Office of Employee Relations.
- 7 (d) Kentucky Public Employees Deferred Compensation Authority.
- 8 (e) Office of Administrative Services.
- 9 (f) Office of Legal Services.
- 10 (g) Governmental Services Center.
- 11 (h) Department of Employee Insurance.
- 12 (i) Office of Diversity, Equality, and Training.
- 13 (j) Office of Public Affairs.

14 III. Other departments headed by appointed officers:

- 15 (1) Council on Postsecondary Education.
- 16 (2) Department of Military Affairs.
- 17 (3) Department for Local Government.
- 18 (4) Kentucky Commission on Human Rights.
- 19 (5) Kentucky Commission on Women.
- 20 (6) Department of Veterans' Affairs.
- 21 (7) Kentucky Commission on Military Affairs.
- 22 (8) Office of Minority Empowerment.
- 23 (9) Governor's Council on Wellness and Physical Activity.
- 24 (10) Kentucky Communications Network Authority.

25 ➔Section 2. KRS 18A.115 is amended to read as follows:

- 26 (1) The classified service to which KRS 18A.005 to 18A.200 shall apply shall comprise
- 27 all positions in the state service now existing or hereafter established, except the

1 following:

- 2 (a) The General Assembly and employees of the General Assembly, including the
3 employees of the Legislative Research Commission;
- 4 (b) Officers elected by popular vote and persons appointed to fill vacancies in
5 elective offices;
- 6 (c) Members of boards and commissions;
- 7 (d) Officers and employees on the staff of the Governor, the Lieutenant Governor,
8 the Office of the Secretary of the Governor's Cabinet, and the Office of
9 Program Administration;
- 10 (e) Cabinet secretaries, commissioners, office heads, and the administrative heads
11 of all boards and commissions, including the executive director of Kentucky
12 Educational Television and the executive director and deputy executive
13 director of the Education Professional Standards Board;
- 14 (f) Employees of Kentucky Educational Television who have been determined to
15 be exempt from classified service by the Kentucky Authority for Educational
16 Television, which shall have sole authority over such exempt employees for
17 employment, dismissal, and setting of compensation, up to the maximum
18 established for the executive director and his principal assistants;
- 19 (g) One (1) principal assistant or deputy for each person exempted under
20 subsection (1)(e) of this section;
- 21 (h) One (1) additional principal assistant or deputy as may be necessary for
22 making and carrying out policy for each person exempted under subsection
23 (1)(e) of this section in those instances in which the nature of the functions,
24 size, or complexity of the unit involved are such that the secretary approves
25 such an addition on petition of the relevant cabinet secretary or department
26 head and such other principal assistants, deputies, or other major assistants as
27 may be necessary for making and carrying out policy for each person

1 exempted under subsection (1)(e) of this section in those instances in which
2 the nature of the functions, size, or complexity of the unit involved are such
3 that the board may approve such an addition or additions on petition of the
4 department head approved by the secretary. Effective August 1, 2010:

5 1. All positions approved under this paragraph prior to August 1, 2010,
6 shall be abolished effective December 31, 2010, unless reapproved
7 under subparagraph 2. of this paragraph; and

8 2. A position approved under this paragraph on or after August 1, 2010,
9 shall be approved for a period of five (5) years, after which time the
10 position shall be abolished unless reapproved under this subparagraph
11 for an additional five (5) year period;

12 (i) Division directors subject to the provisions of KRS 18A.170. Division
13 directors in the classified service as of January 1, 1980, shall remain in the
14 classified service;

15 (j) Physicians employed as such;

16 (k) One (1) private secretary for each person exempted under subsection (1)(e),
17 (g), and (h) of this section;

18 (l) The judicial department, referees, receivers, jurors, and notaries public;

19 (m) Officers and members of the staffs of state universities and colleges and
20 student employees of such institutions; officers and employees of the
21 Teachers' Retirement System; and officers, teachers, and employees of local
22 boards of education;

23 (n) Patients or inmates employed in state institutions;

24 (o) Persons employed in a professional or scientific capacity to make or conduct a
25 temporary or special inquiry, investigation, or examination on behalf of the
26 General Assembly, or a committee thereof, or by authority of the Governor,
27 and persons employed by state agencies for a specified, limited period to

- 1 provide professional, technical, scientific, or artistic services under the
2 provisions of KRS 45A.690 to 45A.725;
- 3 (p) Interim employees;
- 4 (q) Officers and members of the state militia;
- 5 (r) Department of Kentucky State Police troopers;
- 6 (s) University or college engineering students or other students employed part-
7 time or part-year by the state through special personnel recruitment programs;
8 provided that while so employed such aides shall be under contract to work
9 full-time for the state after graduation for a period of time approved by the
10 commissioner or shall be participants in a cooperative education program
11 approved by the commissioner;
- 12 (t) Superintendents of state mental institutions, including heads of centers for
13 individuals with an intellectual disability, and penal and correctional
14 institutions as referred to in KRS 196.180(2);
- 15 (u) Staff members of the Kentucky Historical Society, if they are hired in
16 accordance with KRS 171.311;
- 17 (v) County and Commonwealth's attorneys and their respective appointees;
- 18 (w) Chief district engineers and the state highway engineer;
- 19 (x) Veterinarians employed as such by the Kentucky Horse Racing Commission;
- 20 (y) Employees of the Kentucky Peace Corps;
- 21 (z) Employees of the Council on Postsecondary Education;
- 22 (aa) Executive director of the Commonwealth Office of Technology;
- 23 (ab) Employees of Serve Kentucky~~[the Kentucky Commission on Community~~
24 ~~Volunteerism and Service]~~;
- 25 (ac) Persons employed in certified teaching positions at the Kentucky School for
26 the Blind and the Kentucky School for the Deaf; and
- 27 (ad) Federally funded time-limited employees as defined in KRS 18A.005.

- 1 (2) Nothing in KRS 18A.005 to 18A.200 is intended, or shall be construed, to alter or
2 amend the provisions of KRS 150.022 and 150.061.
- 3 (3) Nothing in KRS 18A.005 to 18A.200 is intended or shall be construed to affect any
4 nonmanagement, nonpolicy-making position which must be included in the
5 classified service as a prerequisite to the grant of federal funds to a state agency.
- 6 (4) Career employees within the classified service promoted to positions exempted
7 from classified service shall, upon termination of their employment in the exempted
8 service, revert to a position in that class in the agency from which they were
9 terminated if a vacancy in that class exists. If no such vacancy exists, they shall be
10 considered for employment in any vacant position for which they were qualified
11 pursuant to KRS 18A.130 and 18A.135.
- 12 (5) Nothing in KRS 18A.005 to 18A.200 shall be construed as precluding appointing
13 officers from filling unclassified positions in the manner in which positions in the
14 classified service are filled except as otherwise provided in KRS 18A.005 to
15 18A.200.
- 16 (6) The positions of employees who are transferred, effective July 1, 1998, from the
17 Cabinet for Workforce Development to the Kentucky Community and Technical
18 College System shall be abolished and the employees' names removed from the
19 roster of state employees. Employees that are transferred, effective July 1, 1998, to
20 the Kentucky Community and Technical College System under KRS Chapter 164
21 shall have the same benefits and rights as they had under KRS Chapter 18A and
22 have under KRS 164.5805; however, they shall have no guaranteed reemployment
23 rights in the KRS Chapter 151B or KRS Chapter 18A personnel systems. An
24 employee who seeks reemployment in a state position under KRS Chapter 151B or
25 KRS Chapter 18A shall have years of service in the Kentucky Community and
26 Technical College System counted towards years of experience for calculating
27 benefits and compensation.

1 (7) On August 15, 2000, all certified and equivalent personnel, all unclassified
2 personnel, and all certified and equivalent and unclassified vacant positions in the
3 Department for Adult Education and Literacy shall be transferred from the
4 personnel system under KRS Chapter 151B to the personnel system under KRS
5 Chapter 18A. The positions shall be deleted from the KRS Chapter 151B personnel
6 system. All records shall be transferred including accumulated annual leave, sick
7 leave, compensatory time, and service credit for each affected employee. The
8 personnel officers who administer the personnel systems under KRS Chapter 151B
9 and KRS Chapter 18A shall exercise the necessary administrative procedures to
10 effect the change in personnel authority. No certified or equivalent employee in the
11 Department for Adult Education and Literacy shall suffer any penalty in the
12 transfer.

13 (8) On August 15, 2000, secretaries and assistants attached to policymaking positions
14 in the Department for Technical Education and the Department for Adult Education
15 and Literacy shall be transferred from the personnel system under KRS Chapter
16 151B to the personnel system under KRS Chapter 18A. The positions shall be
17 deleted from the KRS Chapter 151B system. All records shall be transferred
18 including accumulated annual leave, sick leave, compensatory time, and service
19 credit for each affected employee. No employee shall suffer any penalty in the
20 transfer.

21 (9) On May 1, 2017, all contract employees of Eastern Kentucky University who are
22 engaged in providing instructional and support services to the Department of
23 Criminal Justice Training shall be transferred to the personnel system under KRS
24 Chapter 18A. All records shall be transferred, including accumulated annual leave,
25 sick leave, compensatory time, and service credit for each affected employee. The
26 personnel officers who administer the personnel systems for Eastern Kentucky
27 University and under KRS Chapter 18A shall exercise the necessary administrative

1 procedures to effect the change in personnel authority. No employee shall suffer any
2 penalty in the transfer.

3 ➔Section 3. KRS 194A.030 is amended to read as follows:

4 The cabinet consists of the following major organizational units, which are hereby
5 created:

6 (1) Office of the Secretary. Within the Office of the Secretary, there shall be an Office
7 of Communications and Administrative Review, an Office of Legal Services, an
8 Office of Inspector General, an Office of the Ombudsman, and the Governor's
9 Office of Electronic Health Information.

10 (a) The Office of Communications and Administrative Review shall include
11 oversight of administrative hearings and communications with internal and
12 external audiences of the cabinet. The Office of Communications and
13 Administrative Review shall be headed by an executive director who shall be
14 appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor under KRS
15 12.050.

16 (b) The Office of Legal Services shall provide legal advice and assistance to all
17 units of the cabinet in any legal action in which it may be involved. The Office
18 of Legal Services shall employ all attorneys of the cabinet who serve the
19 cabinet in the capacity of attorney, giving legal advice and opinions
20 concerning the operation of all programs in the cabinet. The Office of Legal
21 Services shall be headed by a general counsel who shall be appointed by the
22 secretary with the approval of the Governor under KRS 12.050 and 12.210.
23 The general counsel shall be the chief legal advisor to the secretary and shall
24 be directly responsible to the secretary. The Attorney General, on the request
25 of the secretary, may designate the general counsel as an assistant attorney
26 general under the provisions of KRS 15.105.

27 (c) The Office of Inspector General shall be responsible for:

- 1 1. The conduct of audits and investigations for detecting the perpetration of
2 fraud or abuse of any program by any client, or by any vendor of
3 services with whom the cabinet has contracted; and the conduct of
4 special investigations requested by the secretary, commissioners, or
5 office heads of the cabinet into matters related to the cabinet or its
6 programs;
- 7 2. Licensing and regulatory functions as the secretary may delegate;
- 8 3. Review of health facilities participating in transplant programs, as
9 determined by the secretary, for the purpose of determining any
10 violations of KRS 311.1911 to 311.1959, 311.1961, and 311.1963; and
- 11 4. The notification and forwarding of any information relevant to possible
12 criminal violations to the appropriate prosecuting authority.

13 The Office of Inspector General shall be headed by an inspector general who
14 shall be appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor. The
15 inspector general shall be directly responsible to the secretary.

16 (d) The Office of the Ombudsman shall provide professional support in the
17 evaluation of programs, including but not limited to quality improvement and
18 information analysis and reporting, contract monitoring, program monitoring,
19 and the development of quality service delivery, and a review and resolution
20 of citizen complaints about programs or services of the cabinet when those
21 complaints are unable to be resolved through normal administrative remedies.
22 The Office of the Ombudsman shall place an emphasis on research and best
23 practice and program accountability and shall monitor federal compliance.
24 The Office of the Ombudsman shall be headed by an executive director who
25 shall be appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor in
26 accordance with KRS 12.050.

27 (e) The Governor's Office of Electronic Health Information shall provide

1 leadership in the redesign of the health care delivery system using electronic
2 information technology as a means to improve patient care and reduce medical
3 errors and duplicative services. The Governor's Office of Electronic Health
4 Information shall be headed by an executive director who shall be appointed
5 by the secretary with the approval of the Governor in accordance with KRS
6 12.050;

7 (2) Department for Medicaid Services. The Department for Medicaid Services shall
8 serve as the single state agency in the Commonwealth to administer Title XIX of the
9 Federal Social Security Act. The Department for Medicaid Services shall be headed
10 by a commissioner for Medicaid services, who shall be appointed by the secretary
11 with the approval of the Governor under KRS 12.050. The commissioner for
12 Medicaid services shall be a person who by experience and training in
13 administration and management is qualified to perform the duties of this office. The
14 commissioner for Medicaid services shall exercise authority over the Department
15 for Medicaid Services under the direction of the secretary and shall only fulfill those
16 responsibilities as delegated by the secretary;

17 (3) Department for Public Health. The Department for Public Health shall develop and
18 operate all programs of the cabinet that provide health services and all programs for
19 assessing the health status of the population for the promotion of health and the
20 prevention of disease, injury, disability, and premature death. This shall include but
21 not be limited to oversight of the Division of Women's Health. The Department for
22 Public Health shall be headed by a commissioner for public health who shall be
23 appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor under KRS 12.050.
24 The commissioner for public health shall be a duly licensed physician who by
25 experience and training in administration and management is qualified to perform
26 the duties of this office. The commissioner shall advise the head of each major
27 organizational unit enumerated in this section on policies, plans, and programs

1 relating to all matters of public health, including any actions necessary to safeguard
2 the health of the citizens of the Commonwealth. The commissioner shall serve as
3 chief medical officer of the Commonwealth. The commissioner for public health
4 shall exercise authority over the Department for Public Health under the direction of
5 the secretary and shall only fulfill those responsibilities as delegated by the
6 secretary;

7 (4) Department for Behavioral Health, Developmental and Intellectual Disabilities. The
8 Department for Behavioral Health, Developmental and Intellectual Disabilities shall
9 develop and administer programs for the prevention of mental illness, intellectual
10 disabilities, brain injury, developmental disabilities, and substance abuse disorders
11 and shall develop and administer an array of services and support for the treatment,
12 habilitation, and rehabilitation of persons who have a mental illness or emotional
13 disability, or who have an intellectual disability, brain injury, developmental
14 disability, or a substance abuse disorder. The Department for Behavioral Health,
15 Developmental and Intellectual Disabilities shall be headed by a commissioner for
16 behavioral health, developmental and intellectual disabilities who shall be
17 appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor under KRS 12.050.
18 The commissioner for behavioral health, developmental and intellectual disabilities
19 shall be by training and experience in administration and management qualified to
20 perform the duties of the office. The commissioner for behavioral health,
21 developmental and intellectual disabilities shall exercise authority over the
22 department under the direction of the secretary, and shall only fulfill those
23 responsibilities as delegated by the secretary;

24 (5) Office~~Commission~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs. The duties,
25 responsibilities, and authority set out in KRS 200.460 to 200.490 shall be performed
26 by the office~~commission~~. The office~~commission~~ shall advocate the rights of
27 children with disabilities and, to the extent that funds are available, shall ensure the

1 administration of services for children with disabilities as are deemed appropriate
2 by ~~this office~~~~the commission~~ pursuant to Title V of the Social Security Act. The
3 ~~office~~~~commission~~ may promulgate administrative regulations under KRS Chapter
4 13A as may be necessary to implement and administer its responsibilities. The
5 duties, responsibilities, and authority of the ~~Office~~~~Commission~~ for Children with
6 Special Health Care Needs shall be performed through the office of the executive
7 director. The executive director shall be appointed by the secretary with the
8 approval of the Governor under KRS 12.050;

9 (6) Office of Health Policy. The Office of Health Policy shall lead efforts to coordinate
10 health care policy, including Medicaid, behavioral health, developmental and
11 intellectual disabilities, mental health services, services for individuals with an
12 intellectual disability, public health, certificate of need, and health insurance. The
13 duties, responsibilities, and authority pertaining to the certificate of need functions
14 and the licensure appeal functions, as set out in KRS Chapter 216B, shall be
15 performed by this office. The Office of Health Policy shall be headed by an
16 executive director who shall be appointed by the secretary with the approval of the
17 Governor pursuant to KRS 12.050;

18 (7) Department for Family Resource Centers and Volunteer Services. The Department
19 for Family Resource Centers and Volunteer Services shall streamline the various
20 responsibilities associated with the human services programs for which the cabinet
21 is responsible. This shall include, but not be limited to, oversight of the Division of
22 Family Resource and Youth Services Centers and ~~Commission on Community Volunteerism and Services~~~~the Kentucky~~
23 ~~Commission on Community Volunteerism and Services~~. The Department for
24 Family Resource Centers and Volunteer Services shall be headed by a
25 commissioner who shall be appointed by the secretary with the approval of the
26 Governor under KRS 12.050. The commissioner for family resource centers and
27 volunteer services shall be by training and experience in administration and

1 management qualified to perform the duties of the office, shall exercise authority
2 over the department under the direction of the secretary, and shall only fulfill those
3 responsibilities as delegated by the secretary;

4 (8) Office of Administrative and Technology Services. The Office of Administrative
5 and Technology Services shall develop and maintain technology, technology
6 infrastructure, and information management systems in support of all units of the
7 cabinet. The office shall have responsibility for properties and facilities owned,
8 maintained, or managed by the cabinet. The Office of Administrative and
9 Technology Services shall be headed by an executive director who shall be
10 appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor under KRS 12.050.
11 The executive director shall exercise authority over the Office of Administrative
12 and Technology Services under the direction of the secretary and shall only fulfill
13 those responsibilities as delegated by the secretary;

14 (9) Office of Human Resource Management. The Office of Human Resource
15 Management shall coordinate, oversee, and execute all personnel, training, and
16 management functions of the cabinet. The office shall focus on the oversight,
17 development, and implementation of quality personnel services; curriculum
18 development and delivery of instruction to staff; the administration, management,
19 and oversight of training operations; health, safety, and compliance training; and
20 equal employment opportunity compliance functions. The office shall be headed by
21 an executive director appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor
22 in accordance with KRS 12.050;

23 (10) The Office of Finance and Budget shall provide central review and oversight of
24 budget, contracts, and cabinet finances. The office shall provide coordination,
25 assistance, and support to program departments and independent review and
26 analysis on behalf of the secretary. The office shall be headed by an executive
27 director appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor in accordance

1 with KRS 12.050;

2 (11) Department for Community Based Services. The Department for Community Based
3 Services shall administer and be responsible for child and adult protection, violence
4 prevention resources, foster care and adoption, permanency, and services to enhance
5 family self-sufficiency, including child care, social services, public assistance, and
6 family support. The department shall be headed by a commissioner appointed by the
7 secretary with the approval of the Governor in accordance with KRS 12.050;

8 (12) Department for Income Support. The Department for Income Support shall be
9 responsible for child support enforcement and disability determination. The
10 department shall serve as the state unit as required by Title II and Title XVI of the
11 Social Security Act, and shall have responsibility for determining eligibility for
12 disability for those citizens of the Commonwealth who file applications for
13 disability with the Social Security Administration. The department shall be headed
14 by a commissioner appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor in
15 accordance with KRS 12.050;

16 (13) Department for Aging and Independent Living. The Department for Aging and
17 Independent Living shall serve as the state unit as designated by the Administration
18 on Aging Services under the Older Americans Act and shall have responsibility for
19 administration of the federal community support services, in-home services, meals,
20 family and caregiver support services, elder rights and legal assistance, senior
21 community services employment program, the state health insurance assistance
22 program, state home and community based services including home care,
23 Alzheimer's respite services and the personal care attendant program, certifications
24 of adult day care and assisted living facilities, the state Council on Alzheimer's
25 Disease and other related disorders, the Institute on Aging, and guardianship
26 services. The department shall also administer the Long-Term Care Ombudsman
27 Program and the Medicaid Home and Community Based Waivers Consumer

1 Directed Option (CDO) Program. The department shall serve as the information and
2 assistance center for aging and disability services and administer multiple federal
3 grants and other state initiatives. The department shall be headed by a commissioner
4 appointed by the secretary with the approval of the Governor in accordance with
5 KRS 12.050; and

6 (14) The Office of Legislative and Regulatory Affairs shall provide central review and
7 oversight of legislation, policy, and administrative regulations. The office shall
8 provide coordination, assistance, and support to program departments and
9 independent review and analysis on behalf of the secretary. The office shall be
10 headed by an executive director appointed by the secretary with the approval of the
11 Governor in accordance with KRS 12.050.

12 ➔Section 4. KRS 194A.570 is amended to read as follows:

13 ~~[(1) As used in KRS 194A.570 to 194A.578, "commission" means the Kentucky~~
14 ~~Commission on Community Volunteerism and Service.~~

15 ~~(2) The Kentucky Commission on Community Volunteerism and Service]~~Serve
16 Kentucky is created and shall be attached to the Cabinet for Health and Family Services
17 for oversight, technical, and administrative support purposes. A director and other
18 appropriate staff shall be hired by Serve Kentucky~~[the commission]~~ when federal funds
19 become available.

20 ➔Section 5. KRS 194A.572 is amended to read as follows:

21 Serve Kentucky~~[The commission]~~ shall initially consist of twenty-five (25) voting
22 members who shall be appointed by the Governor. Membership on Serve Kentucky~~[the~~
23 ~~commission]~~ shall be for a three (3) year term, with the exception that initially one third
24 (1/3) of the members shall serve for a term of one (1) year, one-third (1/3) of the members
25 shall serve for a term of two (2) years, and one-third (1/3) of the members shall serve for
26 a term of three (3) years. After the first six (6) months of operations, the Governor
27 reserves the option to request Serve Kentucky~~[the commission]~~ to submit

1 recommendations for any additional members deemed necessary to balance Serve
 2 Kentucky's~~[the commission's]~~ perspective, provided that Serve Kentucky's~~[the~~
 3 ~~commission's]~~ membership does not exceed twenty-five (25). Serve Kentucky~~[The~~
 4 ~~commission]~~ shall annually select from its membership a chair to serve for a term of one
 5 (1) year.

6 →Section 6. KRS 194A.575 is amended to read as follows:

7 The purpose of Serve Kentucky~~[the commission]~~ is to engage in statewide strategic
 8 planning, establish relevant policies, provide administrative oversight, and promote
 9 programs and strengthen the service ethic among the Commonwealth's citizens by
 10 facilitating the development of strategic programs that enable citizens to address serious
 11 societal problems including, but not limited to, education reform through service to local
 12 communities.

13 →Section 7. KRS 194A.578 is amended to read as follows:

14 Serve Kentucky~~[The commission]~~ shall:

- 15 (1) Develop a strategic plan for service in Kentucky which covers a three (3) year
 16 period, and supporting efforts to achieve the goals of this plan. The plan shall be
 17 updated annually;
- 18 (2) Oversee and submit Kentucky's annual applications to the Corporation for National
 19 Service, the federal funding authority, and other funding sources for the
 20 continuation and any expansion of the current Kentucky Serve initiative;
- 21 (3) Conduct a competitive application process to determine the organizations that will
 22 be awarded subgrants to operate national service programs;
- 23 (4) Fulfill any other responsibilities required by the Corporation for National Service
 24 and other funding sources; and
- 25 (5) Promulgate administrative regulations pursuant to KRS Chapter 13A to establish
 26 operational guidelines for Serve Kentucky~~[the commission]~~.

27 →Section 8. KRS 200.460 is amended to read as follows:

- 1 (1) The Office~~[Commission]~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs shall provide
2 through contractual agreement, or otherwise, such services as may be necessary to
3 locate, diagnose, treat, habilitate, or rehabilitate children with disabilities, and may
4 include any necessary auxiliary services, such as room and board and travel for
5 patients and parents or parent substitutes.
- 6 (2) Children referred to the care of the Office~~[Commission]~~ for Children with Special
7 Health Care Needs for treatment shall be placed under the care of those physicians
8 or surgeons that the Office~~[Commission]~~ for Children with Special Health Care
9 Needs deems qualified and may be placed in a hospital or home properly equipped
10 to render the necessary treatment or services required by the child.
- 11 (3) The Office~~[Commission]~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs is authorized
12 to make those expenditures necessary to carry out the provisions of this section and
13 KRS 200.470 to 200.490.
- 14 (4) Any administrative appeal of a decision of the office~~[commission]~~ shall be
15 conducted in accordance with KRS Chapter 13B.
- 16 ➔Section 9. KRS 200.470 is amended to read as follows:
- 17 (1) No child shall be accepted for care or treatment by the Office~~[Commission]~~ for
18 Children with Special Health Care Needs if his parents or legal guardian are able to
19 pay for such treatment except where the child resides in an area of the state where
20 adequate care and treatment are not otherwise available, in which event referral
21 must be made by the doctor caring for the child and the parents or guardian shall
22 reimburse the Office~~[Commission]~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs for
23 all cost expended by the office~~[commission]~~ for treatment.
- 24 (2) In the event the Office~~[Commission]~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs
25 determines that the parents or legal guardian of a child with a disability can pay only
26 a portion of the cost of treatment through their own resources or through resources
27 available to them, such parents or guardian shall pay such sums as they are able to

1 pay and the funds thus received shall be turned over to the Office~~Commission~~ for
 2 Children with Special Health Care Needs and applied to the cost of treatment and
 3 care of the child.

4 ➔Section 10. KRS 200.480 is amended to read as follows:

5 The Office~~Commission~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs shall make a
 6 biennial report to the Governor showing the amount of money received and expended and
 7 a detailed statement of its activities for such period. A copy of such report shall be
 8 furnished each member of the General Assembly at its first session following the filing of
 9 such report with the Governor.

10 ➔Section 11. KRS 200.490 is amended to read as follows:

11 All information as to medical data, personal facts, and circumstances obtained by the
 12 Office~~Commission~~ for Children with Special Health Care Needs staff shall constitute
 13 privileged communications, shall be held confidential and shall not be divulged without
 14 the consent of the father, mother, guardian, person who committed the child, or the
 15 patient involved, except as may be necessary to provide additional services to children
 16 through other medical, welfare or service agencies and institutions. Such information may
 17 be disclosed in summary, statistical or other form which does not identify particular
 18 individuals.

19 ➔Section 12. KRS 200.495 is amended to read as follows:

20 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:

21 (1) ~~["Commission" means the Kentucky Commission for Children with Special Health~~
 22 ~~Care Needs, the Kentucky Crippled Children's Program, and the Kentucky Program~~
 23 ~~of Health Services to children with special health care needs.~~

24 (2) ~~—~~"Recipient" means any person who has received medical services provided by the
 25 Office for Children with Special Health Care Needs ~~commission~~ or who has
 26 received medical services paid for on his behalf by the office~~commission~~.

27 (2)~~(3)~~ "Medical services" means medical or medically-related institutional or

1 noninstitutional services which are provided to a recipient or paid for by the ***Office***
 2 ***for Children with Special Health Care Needs*** ~~[commission]~~ on behalf of a
 3 recipient.

4 ~~(3)~~~~(4)~~ "Third-party coverage" means any public or private party who is liable to
 5 provide medical services or to make medical services benefit payments to a
 6 recipient or other provider for medical services provided to a recipient under the
 7 terms of any contract, health insurance policy, health insurance plan, settlement, or
 8 award.

9 ➔Section 13. KRS 200.497 is amended to read as follows:

10 Third-party coverage for medical services provided by the ***Office for Children with***
 11 ***Special Health Care Needs***~~[commission]~~ to clients of the ***office***~~[commission]~~ shall be
 12 considered primary coverage in all instances. The ***office's***~~[commission's]~~ liability for
 13 coverage for medical services to its clients shall be considered residual to third-party
 14 coverage in all instances.

15 ➔Section 14. KRS 200.499 is amended to read as follows:

16 (1) An applicant for or recipient of medical services provided by or paid for by the
 17 ***Office for Children with Special Health Care Needs***~~[commission]~~ shall inform the
 18 ***office***~~[commission]~~ of any rights that the applicant or recipient has to third-party
 19 payments for medical services at the time of initial application for services or at any
 20 time thereafter when such third-party payment should become available. The
 21 ***office***~~[commission]~~ shall automatically be subrogated to any rights the recipient has
 22 to third-party payment for medical services.

23 (2) The ***office***~~[commission]~~ shall recover the full cost of medical services provided to a
 24 recipient and shall recover any payments made for medical services on his behalf
 25 directly from:

26 (a) Any third party liable to make a medical benefit payment to the provider of
 27 the recipient's medical services or to the recipient under the terms and

- 1 provisions of any contract, health insurance policy, health insurance plan,
2 settlement, or award;
- 3 (b) The recipient, if he or she has received third-party payment for medical
4 services that have been provided to him; or
- 5 (c) The provider of the recipient's medical services if third-party payment for
6 medical services has been recovered by the provider.
- 7 (3) A recipient of medical services provided by the office~~[commission]~~ or paid for by
8 the office~~[commission]~~ shall be deemed to have made an assignment to the
9 office~~[commission]~~ of any right such recipient has to any payment for such medical
10 services from a third party.
- 11 (4) A recipient of medical services provided by the office~~[commission]~~ or paid for by
12 the office~~[commission]~~ shall be deemed to have provided the office~~[commission]~~
13 the authority to release medical information with respect to such medical services
14 for the purpose of obtaining reimbursement from a third party.
- 15 (5) The office~~[commission]~~ may, in order to enforce its subrogation rights under this
16 section, institute, intervene in, or join any legal proceeding against any third party
17 against whom recovery rights arise. No action taken by the office~~[commission]~~ shall
18 operate to deny the recipient recovery for that portion of his damage not subrogated
19 to the office~~[commission]~~ and no action of the recipient shall prejudice the
20 subrogation rights of the office~~[commission]~~.
- 21 (6) When the office~~[commission]~~ provides, pays for, or becomes liable for the medical
22 services, and their costs, of a recipient, it shall have a lien for the full amount of the
23 cost of such medical services upon any and all causes of action which accrue to the
24 recipient or to his legal representatives, as a result of sickness, injury, disease,
25 disability, or death due to the liability of a third party which necessitated the
26 medical service. The office~~[commission]~~ shall have one (1) calendar year from the
27 date when the last item of medical services relative to a specific accident or spell of

1 illness was provided or paid for in which to file its verified lien statement. The
2 statement shall be filed with the clerk of the Circuit Court in the recipient's county
3 residence. The verified lien statement shall contain the name and address of the
4 recipient of medical services; the date of the injury or accident; the name and
5 address of the vendor or vendors furnishing medical services to the recipient; the
6 date of the medical services; the amount claimed to be due the office~~[commission]~~
7 for the medical services provided or paid for; and, to the best knowledge of the
8 office~~[commission]~~, the names and addresses of all persons or corporations claimed
9 to be liable for damages arising from the injuries. The office's~~[commission's]~~ failure
10 to file a lien shall not affect the office's~~[commission's]~~ subrogation rights provided
11 for in subsection (1) of this section.

12 (7) In recovering any payment in accordance with this action, the office~~[commission]~~ is
13 authorized to make appropriate settlements.